BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

March 11, 2025
6:30 p.m.

Board of Education Board Room
1300 17" Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfield, CA 93301

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior o a meeting of the Kern County Board of
Education can be inspected during nermal business hours at the Kern County Superintendent of Schools Office,
located at 1300 17" Street, Seventh Floor, Bakersfield, California 93301.

An individual who requires disability related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and

service, in order to participate in the board meeting should contact the Superintendent’s Office at (661) 636-4617
(Government Code 54954.2).

This meeting is being held in an in-person format. Members of the public wishing to provide comments to the
Board can attend the meeting in person. Correspondence sent by mail or email to kcboe@kern.org before noon
on the date of the board meeting on subjects within the Board's jurisdiction will be provided to the Board at the
meeting and made available for public inspection. Members of the public may also observe the meeting via
livestream at the following link: (1) Kern County Board of Education — YouTube.

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1 Call to order time p.m.
1.2  Pledge of Allegiance

1.3  Roll Call

Julie A. Beechinor, Area 1

Joe L. Marcano, Area 2

Mary M. Little, Area 3

Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr., Area 4

Lori Eskew, Area 5

James V. Robinson, Area 6

Leri J. Cisneros, Area 7

Anai Valencia, Student Representative
Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

I

>
o
7]
1]
=

1.4 Adoption of the Agenda

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

1.5  Approval of the Minutes from February 11, 2025.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain




2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

The Board of Education appreciates comments from members of the public who have the opporiunity to address

the Board on agenda items (before the Board's consideration of the item) and on other matters within the Board's
jurisdiction.

To move the meeting business along efficiently, individual speakers are allotted up to three minutes each, and
the total time for comment on each agenda or other topic within the Board's jurisdiction will be limited to 20
minutes. All requests for public comment must be submitted prior to the start of the meeting. In exceptional
circumstances, the Board President may, with Board consent, reduce or increase the amount of time allowed for
public input and/or the time allotted for each speaker, when such adjustment is necessary to ensure full
opportunity for public input within the time allotted. Any such adjustments shall be done in an equitable manner,
so as to aliow a diversity of viewpoints. The President may also ask members of the public with the same
viewpoint to select a few individuals to address the Board regarding that viewpoint.

To allow the Board to organize the public comments, persons wishing to speak will need to complete a form
before the board meeting begins, providing their name, contact information, and the agenda item or other topic
on the Board’s jurisdiction on which they wish to speak. ltems not appearing on the agenda cannot, by law, be
the subject of board action.

3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS — NO ACTION TAKEN

3.1 Student Wellness Program Presentation.

4.0 ACTION ITEMS

All consent agenda items for the Kern County Board of Education are considered to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion unless a board member requests separate action on a specific item. Approval is
recommended on all items listed.

4.1 Consent Agenda
4.1.1 Approval of Graduation Diplomas.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
42  General Business

421 Report of Staff Findings and Recommendation regarding the REALMS Charter Renewal
Petition.
Informational ftem Only

422 Approval of the REALMS Charter Renewal Petition.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
423 Adopt Resolution for National and Global Youth Service Days.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
424 Adopt Resolution for School Bus Driver Day.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
425 Accept and File Second Interim Report.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain



5.0 REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

5.1 Members of the Board will report on various topics.
6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

6.1 The County Superintendent will report on various topics.

7.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

7.1 Items to be considered for the next agenda.

8.0 ADJOURNMENT

8.1 Unless otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on April 8,
2025.

8.2  Time of adjournment p.m.



BOARD OF EDUCATION [.©
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

February 11, 2025
6:30 p.m.

Board of Education Board Room
1300 17t Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfield, CA 93301

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Board Members Present
Julie A. Beechinor

Lori J. Cisneros

Lori Eskew

Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr.
Mary M. Little

Joe L. Marcano

James V. Robinson
Anai Valencia

KCS0S Employees Present
Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

Christian Shannon, Deputy Superintendent
Steve Sanders, Chief of Staff
Merril Clanton, Senior Executive Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent

it was moved by Mr. Marcano, seconded by Mr. Robinson to approve the agenda.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little, Mr.
Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

It was moved by Mr. Robinson, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve the Minutes from January
14, 2025.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little, Mr.
Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None



2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

2.1

Public Comments were heard from the following:

= Wayne Wong
=  Dennis MclLean
»  Maithew Garrett

= Tonya Hoit
* Glenn Clayton
» Jan Lundy

= Paula Bray

3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS — NO ACTION TAKEN

3.1

3.2

3.3

Mock Trial Presentation.
Leaders in Life Presentation.

Child Trafficking Awareness Presentation.

4.0 ACTION ITEMS

4.1

Consent Agenda

411 It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Ms. Cisneros to approve the Graduation

Diplomas.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little, Mr.
Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

General Business

421 Public hearing regarding the REALMS Charter Renewal Petition.
No Action Taken

4.2.2 Accept and File the Mid-Year 2024-25 LCAP Update.
No Action Taken

423 It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve the 2023-2024
Annual Audit Report.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little, Mr.
Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None



5.0

424

425

It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve the 2023-2024
School Accountability Report Card (SARC) for Court and Community Schools.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little, Mr.
Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

California School Boards Association 2025 Delegate Assembly Ballot
No Action Taken

REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

51

5.2

53

54

Trustee Marcano praised the students involved in the Mock Trial Presentation, noting their
impressive skills, talent, and professionalism. He expressed hope that the students would
continue their path and pursue law school. Additionally, he shared that he had recently
finished a trial, where he successfully worked on behalf of “the people,” resulting in taking
one less murderer off the streets.

Trustee Eskew shared that she was impressed by the Mock Trial Presentation and found
it to be very engaging. She reflected on the human trafficking discussion, noting how it
brought back memories of her work in institutions and how perspectives on victims have
changed over the years. She expressed her support for efforts to combat human trafficking
and mentioned participating in related workshops and outreach events. Trustee Eskew
also shared some personal experiences, such as attending the Bakersfield Symphony
Orchestra and was pleased to discover their affiliation with KCSOS. Additionally, she
visited a Holocaust Memorial at Chabad, which she found extremely moving.

Trustee Cisneros welcomed the new Student Representative, Anai Valencia, encouraging
her to participate when she feels ready. She thanked the staff for setting up online access
to curriculum, which she is exploring and promised a future update on her thoughts.
Trustee Cisneros expressed her appreciation for being invited to the Bakersfield Prayer
Breakfast, where prayers for wisdom and strength were offered for those involved in
education, and expressed gratitude for such community support. She mentioned a
question about the President’s Executive Order related to dissolving the United States
Department of Education and its potential effects on Kern County, indicating a desire for
more information on this matter. Finally, she expressed enthusiasm for a potential spring
barbecue event, volunteering to help with planning and inviting participation from fellow
trustees and the Anai.

Trustee Robinson expressed disappointment that there was no press present for such an
important topic as human trafficking, especially after other topics, like the Ten
Commandments, had garnered more attention. He acknowledged the importance and
emotional impact of the presentation on human trafficking and thanked the speakers for
their hard-hitting discussion. He emphasized the need for awareness and fundraising for
organizations like the Kern Coalition against Human Trafficking (KCAT) and encouraged
the board to engage in efforts to support such initiatives. He also extended a warm
welcome to student trustee Anai Valencia and advised her to keep an open mind as she
engages in her new role.



5.5  Trustee Little expressed that attending the Prayer Breakfast was an honor and a privilege,
highlighting that Dr. Mendiburu humbly sat at the Dais. She stated that she felt very proud
of him for representing the KCBOE and KCSOS.

586 Student Representative Valencia commented that she appreciated Ms. Perkins sharing
her brave story.

6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

6.1 Dr. Mendiburu attended the Bakersfield Prayer Breakfast, serving as a representative of
Kern County educators. His presence at the event highlighted the dedication and
commitment of educators to the community. During the meeting, he provided updates on
several educational topics, including the potential impacts of recent executive orders, such
as those related to the United States Department of Education and school sports
participation policies. Dr. Mendiburu emphasized the importance of staying informed and
assured the board that more information would be communicated as it becomes available.
He also discussed ongoing efforts to address issues related to immigrant student
attendance following a statewide initiative that impacted school participation.

7.0 CLOSED SESSION

7.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION
(Subdivision (a) of Government Code section 54956.9)
Name of case: C.T. v. Kem County Board of Education; Case No. BCV-23-100890

8.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

8.1 There were no recommendations for item consideration for the next board meeting.

9.0 ADJOURNMENT

9.1 Unless otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on March 11,
2025,

9.2  The meeting was adjourned at 10:16 p.m.

John G. Mendiburu, Ed.D., Superintendent



"¢ d13 AIELILING JO [E13IU] @Y1 Ul ajedidiiied jouued
OYM SAMS O} PBIRISIUIWPE 3q |IM (JYd13) JuBWISSAsSY
3]12UJ3)Y BILICH|ED 3] IBYL 2UNSUI [|IM J3leYD

3y3 (5431 YUm $13) SIUSPNIS PalILBPI-A|[enp 03 pLedal u|

'8927 ('8 Alquiassy

uy paguasap se uapediapury Ja1ua Asyl |LIun JvdTd

[EIIU] 3y} PIIBISIUILLPE J0U 31B 5JUBpNIs (3 1) ualiedlapun)
[BUOIISUEI] 1BY} BINSUI 05| [|IM JLEYD BUL “SINTVIY

1E JUBWj|0JUR uodn Jayioue 233]dwod o} palinbal Jou ale
jooyos Jljgnd eluodien JuJayp e 38 $TH UE palajduiod X T
ApesijE 3ARY DYM SIU3PNIS 1Y) 34nsuUa 03 ainpadold

e ysijqelsa ysnw Japeyo ayL {[e]S'8TSTT UolIas

423 S ‘[2)[al€Z89 "3'S' N 0Z) [ooyas Mgnd piusofio)

B Ul JUDWHI0JUS fofpiul uodn spuapnys o] palalsiulwipe

aq Ajua pinoys (sTH) Asaing 28endue] aWoH ayl (‘T d:ns
:apnjaul pnoys siauies ysisug jo

uonEIYIIUBPI 1Y ssa%04d 3Y| BP0 UOIIEINPT BIUIOH[E]D

yum ude Ajny 03 sainpadcid uonesayiquapl 13 s 1E-67 3P0 UOIIEINPT BILIOH[ED UM udije Aj|nj 1ou saop SiauleaT
BSIARI [[IM H 1BYY NOIAI 241 Ul 24nSUS URD J1aJJEYD 3Y] "S3A 's3d ysi[gu3 jo uoiEdIUIPI 210} uoiIad 3y ul paugino ssai01d ayl e
:|ooYyIs 13MEYD BY} jO WEIS0.d [BUCHEINDPT | |
aqiasop 'seh y # o9ed sSuipuld [En19Ed 11Al JON JI DN JON 19N wisl
ZMNOIN Ul passaippe 2q Suipuly ue) uojed :syuawsinbay

ImZO_H_EUmm_n_ JAISNIHIUAINGD ATaVNOSYIY

o 4 7S
= 7 ) | v/N | 8
- - - E702N
aquasap ‘sah §| 4 =2deg sguipul{ |en3ded 39 10N I BN ION 19N #way
{NOW w1 passaippe ag Suipuy ued uonnad :sjuawaiinbay

sjemaual 10} a|qedijdde JoN (SANIVIIUINT

sSulpuiy UoNINad [EMauRy STV ;0 Meuiwng
22140 |o0Y2S§ JPMEYD

Uiy J0f s31000ApY
$|00Y3S JO WIPU3IULAANSG AJUNO) L3y

NYNGIANIIN "D NHOr 40 331430



uj wnwiulw B 3@ SISEqQ [ENUUE Ue U0 palanpuod 2q
[|BUS MBIABI d7] UE 1BY] 2INSSE [|IM S|00YIS- SJUBISSISSY @
"3|q18112 S| OYM PIY2 Y2e3 10} PISIAGI PUE PEMBIARI
‘padojSAsp Si UBld UOIIEINP] P3ZIENPIAIPY| UE 1eul
ainsse | s|ooYyds- wesdold uoieanpl pazijenpialpule
“JUIWUOIAUS UDIEINPS
[eioUSd ayi Ul SIIAISS pue spre  Asejuswsiddns
10 asn aul ysnouyy passalppe ag |Im SIYL ‘ajedoidde
U218  WNWIXBW 3y} 01 PIQesip lou e oym
S1UBPNIS Yum Palednpa ale SaIes|p Yum siuapnis
1YY 2INSSE ||1M S|OOYIS- IUSLIUOUAUT SANDHISIY JSeTe
'SUSPNIS Pa|qesIp-uou 03 a|ge|ieae sweisold
40 aBuel ||y 913 01 SS3IIR IAEL SRI[IGESIP YUM SIU3PNIS
[1E 1243 24nsse [{1M s|ooyas- AyuniloddQ jeuoneinpy j|nid ¢
"PRIHIUePI 2B S3N]IqEsIP
UMM SIUSpNnIs |[E 1BYL SINSSE [|IM S|OCYIS- pulj pliYD e
‘|looyas
woJ) pajjadxa 1o papuadsns uaag aaey oym salyjiqeslp
YU UJPjIYR Supnioul syuapnls pajjoaud ||e 03 papiaoid
aq |jeys uopesnpa olgqnd oleldosdde sa) B Jeyl
alnsse [jIm s|00Y3S- UOIRINP3 dljqnd 3lendoiddy aaude

:sgaueInsse FUIMO||o) By HeW

Yd13S WNIIosuo] AJUNCD UIa)y ay3 J0 SIaquiow v

[I¥ "¥3dl 9yl pue ygy 243 ‘pOS U0l ‘03 PR 10U
1nq ‘Suipn|aul ‘salMIgesIp Yilm S3uapnis BUlAISSs UL SMe|
|esapay pue 2)e3s ajgesljdde jje yym Aldwon |jeys SWIV3EY

:2UIMO||04 DY} apN[IUI PINOM IEYT NOIA
Ayl Ul S2OUBINSSE Yd IS aplacid ued Janeyd 3yl ‘S9A

‘UDIIEPUSLLIUIOIAY J24Yoea] PUE U018} NSuU0d

1uated | ougna Suinam paudije-0ygs ‘UoLod e Uo paseq

‘@1LIM D|07 E UO t 4O N0 7 B 310025 15Nl Aay} pUE [913)|

apesd Jo SIESA J[BL B PUB UG UIYIIM PEALISIW STIDPMS,,

"3l SIUIPNIS UBDYOId-YsiBug 0} aalplay 5)13s Jised

:a8endue uainlupn pue adendue |LIQ

Ul £ 40 $3J025 WINLWIULIL Y1IM “p JO 21005 [|2IDA0 LUNLLIUIW

1T ELDILD UORIYISSERAU §,30 0 Yam jueyduwod Ajjn)

34 1M 1 184 NOW D43 UL 2INSUB UBD 193/EL) BYL SBA
aquasap ‘sah j|

¢NOW w1 passaippe aq Bujpuy Led

€ "4

le 9d
# 29ed
01H1=d

"SAANPGRSIP YuM s3uapNIs FuIAIes 03 parefal adendur] 1y

JuISSIW S| PUB S3IUEINSSY ¥d13S 2PN|2uL Jou 500p Uolad [PMaUaL ot ]

"UOIBIYISSE|IDS
J 3po) uonem;] e Wi ufye Ay 10| pystdug
4O 1ONPeIYSSEIB L 10} Uunad | [+ Ul pauy P

sgulpuid jenjaey Lo BON M

SNOILINISId INISNIHIAIWOD ATEYNOSTYIY

WA 10N 12N
'syjuawalinbay

T-1l

it Wal




SNOILAIYISIC Y/

-13yaea) 40 Sjuaied 5,1UapNn1s 8yl Ag
palsanbal 10 JURLIEAM SUDINPUGD 4 (D10 10U puE ‘SIeaA 9314}
A1aAS 20UC 1583] JB PAIINPUOI B J[BYS I aWSSISsEal B UOIpRe

:saunpanoad 3INsoD X ST-N
:uonnjosay ands|q X r1-n
t19jsuea) aako|da 1PIISIP Jo STy X €T-1
isjuURpNIs PR||2dx3 40} SIAJIBUIEYY S2UEPLUANIY X Z1-1
:saaAo|dw] Joj aFeiano) JUaWRINRY X T1-1
1S2INPAd0.Id/53131|10d Uols|ndx3 pue uoisuadsng X oT1-1l
1595532014 NpNY X 61l
isjuaWadinbay uolssiwpy X 8-l
:3augeq 31Uyl pue |eey X LN
14815 pue sjidnd yo A39)es puE yieay X 9-1l
:saaAo|dwa jo suonelend X S-H
:3IUBUIBNOD X Ll !
1530230 [Idng Bulmsealy Jo POYISIAl X €11
:s3Wo21nQ |1dng 3|qeinsea|y) X <
“SBIYIGESIP YHm SJU3pms
[|E 10} 3|GI55339€ B ||BYS |00YIS J3LRY) Byl Ag pa
30 01 53111128} Ay, YAV 243 PUB 05 UOILI3S LYIIM azuelduiod
sH Joy ajgIsuodsal Aj2|0s 80 ||BYS [00YIS 18HEY) Sl e
‘ajeudoidde pue Auessadau
uayMm SUOIIBIYIpOW  PUE  SUCIIEPIWIULIODIE areuidoadde
yum sweifold JUSLWSSISSE 31RIS Ul pEpnpul a1e SA|IGesIp
Yum SIIBPNIS JBYY SINSSE ||l S|O0YIS- SIUSLWSSISSY alElSe
"S3IIgESIP YA UBIP[IYY 0} S321AI3S
uoieanps |e1nads apincsd o) |auuosied pajERUSPSIY pue
paulesy Apieudoidde aay pue Hni2al “1oRINE 03 IPEU 3 [jim
5110442 YHEey pood 1841 BUNSSE J|IA §|00LIS- SPIBPLELS [SUUOSI e
‘uaijeanpa 21jgnd alendosdde a2 e Joy suoisiacad pue
ssaac.id yuawade|d pue ‘vonenjess UOEIFIUGP! a4} udnoay
spsendajes yum paplaodd g eys spualed eyl pue spaspni
‘UOIBPPE U] “UOH3RIS2P PUE 3UN50[251D BI0I015 ‘Uole)9
papaioud 3q |[BYS IR A|QRIPIUPI 0 ARPIUSHIUDT 2L 1EYL
SUNSSE [IM SJO0YIS- SPIENTRIES [RINPADCI] pul AU[PIUDPNIA) e
. aquasap ‘sah §| # 2%ed sTuipui4 [enides e 10N 1 PINION WAL Y
£NOW UL passalppe aq Bulpull urD MY sjuzwalinbay




[
_ - - = - 1 ]
LBY10
& 1 s - R e - - = —_— —
| suoneywi JAZLUOYINY pue suoisiasy |edalel | 8-Al
" waa) 1eyeyd £-N
lli uswajdw] Ajnyssa0ans 0} X .
AE3IjuM,, J2pUN UCIBWIOLUI AOGE 335 1SIUBWIIIRIS {BI3UBULY pue 198png
. 15339443 |elUdled pue uoneisdp pasodold { SNl
uoneayIU3P| [POYIS J31EYD Al
uolIsIaAUD) |OoYas a1eAlld | Y/N £-Al
" PuIsig we peduw) easy | v/N A
Auunwiwod ayy Jo sisaialul 9yl BUIAIBS 1|BIUSQ J0) BUDILD _E:wEm_n_.n:m d.w..\z . TN
S-In
1sPIURINSSY /suonetl gy ialll
:saameudls | v/N €1l
'7z0z ‘1 Anf 121e weaSold 1euoneanpa Jua.LInd sy puny Ajinj 03 2|qe _
2q 10U [[IMm 1] “5135PNQ 3ININ} PUE JUBLIND 51| SSIASI JALIEYD 341 559jUn e __ | ‘
8707 ‘0€ 2UN AQ |O0YDS 343 950D A[LIBIUR[OA {|IM S|ENIOE 0} JUBW|I0 1A Pay3aload W0y SOIIDIALP TIPI| 1L | * |
1 10 0E-£ 70T SIeDA |BISI} Ul %G JO 9AI3581 puny |E1ausl _ BU3 199[131 01 PASIARL AJJUIBIDIINS LI 10 1] 13PN 1) HAARMOL _ _ _
LWNUIUIW B UIEIUIEW pUB Jay 328png |17 1a1eys syl ' | "G707 "034 JO Se L£7 03 GTOT Ul GGT WL} Padues sey U)o iis _ | |
ReYAer4 _ [EN32E S, Ja1eYD SYL "ZZ0Z U 6EY 03 BLOT W 0Ty WOl paduel eyl X Cozm |
‘0 aunr AQ |O0YIS 3yl 950[2 A[LIEIUN|OA [[IM J| ‘SUCTIE | JuBjoIua ur uodn Paser] PSR Ajjeniu sesm 13png s, :21e. D 4L _
3say) Ag apige 10U S0P 3| NOW 2Y3 Fuludls 6T07 2IUIs Wweadold _ r
1O SAEP 9 U3 ue|d UoIez||I0e)s (P25t panoidde _ [EUOIIEINPD S puny Alnj 01 sAAISS2 1 57110 FuApp o unacg sy LA VAL |
-pleog B SOSIN G BWIGNS PUB SIEA1 {12 ol iel D atll "S151¢3 NI |PATIN 1S
:s3ulpuly _ e Buipepul ‘Ajjlenuue 000 00LS UrLl 310U A Guiptioads Jiong o an i " |
(851} BYY BINT PUE SSAIPPE (1M SASNAT J1P1S SOSD5 UL poday | 19IPT NITRIG IR RS " bipneg o W | _
MIGIAL Ue U1 Suimoj|o) 33 el a2 10e ey ey 3L San A wiedFoud Juawaiti fiange Amun _
:wei801d [BUOIIBIND T DUNASUL ‘ 2 _ cil
o aquasap ‘saf §| i @deg sJuipul4 enyde Vo 10N ' !

ZNOW Ut passaaptre ¢ Sup) o




Office of John G. Mendiburu

Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Advocates for Children...

Charter Petition Review
REALMS Charter

Petition Analysis and Staff Recommendation
Key Information Regarding the REALMS Renewal Petition:

REALMS Charter was originally approved by the KCBE in 2019 for a two-year term, after the Sierra
sands School District denied that petition. In 2020, the KCBE approved a one-year extension due to
extenuating circumstances related to the Ridgecrest earthquake and the COVID Pandemic.

Subsequently, the SBE then extended the terms of all charters for three additional years due to the lack
of assessment data.

initially, the Charter was identified as being in the low performance tier in 2024. However, the CDE
revised its language related to performance tier criteria, and REALMS was then determined to be in the
middie performance tier.

The Charter submitted its Renewal Petition on January 10, 2025 and a public hearing was held on
February 11'".

Petition Analysis

KCSOS staff with expertise in the various components of the Petition, reviewed the submission based
upon the requirements outlined in Education Codes 47605 and 47607.

The <ta# found that the Petition principally met ali requirements with the exception of the following
items which staff believe can be addressed through a mutually agreed-upon Memorandum of
Jnderstanding (MCU):

1. Reasonably Comprehensive Descriptions of the Educational Program:

v Tre process outlined in the petition for identification and reclassification of English Learners
does no fulyy align with California Education Code.
The renewal petition does not specify that English Learner (EL) students will receive 30 minutes
»f Designated English Language Development (ELD) instruction daily, as required.
The petition does not include SELPA Assurances and is missing other language related to serving
students with disabilities.



2. The charter’s ability to successfully implement the educational program outlined in the
Renewal Petition due to budget and fiscal issues:

. ot is an essential requir t for the operation of the school. Currently, the
ojecte {get (see Petition Appendices) reflects various issues including
1es over b ditures, Net Decrease in Fund Balance and Fund Balance
s issues al deficits that threaten the fiscal sustainability of the

s The Charter has consistently relied on its reserve funds to balance its budget every year.
+ The Charter’s budget was established based on enrollment figures ranging from 420 students in
2019 to 439 students in 2022. However, actual enroliment has ranged from 159 in 2019 to 237

as of February, 2025. The budget projections have not been revised to address the enroliment
differences.

All other requirements outlined in Education Code for renewal petitions were met.
Staff Recommendation:

KCSOS staff recommend that the County Board approve the REALMS Renewal Petition for five years
beginning !y 1, 2025 through June 30, 2030 contingent upon the execution of a mutually-agreed
upon MOU addressing the findings in the staff report. The rationale for this recommendation is as
tollows.

1. Compliance with Education Code 47607
Education Code {47607} requires that charters in the middle performance tier be renewed for five
years unless the authorizer has factual findings that:

. The charter is not serving all students who wish to attend, and/for
The scnool 1c demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth in
he petition due to substantial fiscal or governance factors.

2. F:sca! Oversnght and Risk Mitigation

Follov - diligenl raview of REALMS’ fiscal condition and with ongoing collaboration with the
Charter, <CSOS starf believe that the Charter’s administration and board are commitied to addressing
all aspects of heir financial management. However, KCSOS must ensure that charters under its
authorization operate in a fiscally-responsible manner, not only for the benefit of students and staff,
but also 10| ct the authorizer from potential liabilities arising from fiscal collapse and school
closare.

To ensure tnat REALMS addresses its fiscal issues, KCSOS recommends the inclusion of specific fiscal
manaserent nrovisions in the MOU, Although the above fiscal issues represent serious concerns,
KCSOS st .2 that the Charter can remedy them through a mutually-agreed upon MOU that
would include the following requiremenis:



ca rd f the effective date of the MOU, the Charter School will develop
s KCS intendent, a Fiscal Stabilization Plan that addresses all of the
es and fiscal deficits identified in the Petition’s budget.

1€ Charter S does not timely submit an approvable Fiscal Stabilization Plan
T e issues not ve, the Charter School board will agree to voluntarily close the
>0l inate the charter by June 30, 2025.

c. In the event the Charter School does not project to maintain a minimum general fund reserves
of 5% in the fiscal years 2027-28, 2028-29, and 2029-30 by December 31, 2027, the Charter
Scnool board agrees to voluntarily close the school and terminate the charter by June 30, 2028.



404

RESOLUTION
of the
KERN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

WHEREAS, the perpetuation of our democracy, freedom, way of life, and
competitive marketplace is dependent on preparing each successive generation
of our youth for the reins of leadership in our community, state, and nation; and,

WHEREAS, National and Global Youth Service Days reach out to our youth
and work with them toward addressing the needs of our communities through
hands-on volunteer efforts that, in turn, improve the quality of life; and,

WHEREAS, through service-learning activities, our youth learn about
problems and potential solutions that they can take with them into adulthood
and communicate to others in their home communities; and,

WHEREAS, such volunteer service learning activities do much to promote
awareness and education to children, adults, the media, along with local, state,
and national policymakers; now therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED that the Kern County Board of Education recognizes
April 25-27, 2025 as National and Global Youth Service Days and urges our
community members to continue their long-running efforts to support our youth
as they evolve into our leaders of tomorrow.

BY ORDER OF THE KERN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Date: March 11, 2025

John G. Mendiburu, Ed.D.
Ex Officio Secretary
Kern County Superintendent of Schools



RESOLUTION 4/ 9, ]

OF THE
KERN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

WHEREAS, in recognition of school bus drivers throughout California, the State
Assembly has designated the fourth Tuesday in April, or April 22, 2025, as School Bus
Driver Day; and

WHEREAS, before an individual can qualify to operate a school bus, they must
successfully pass examinations administered by the California Department of Motor
Vehicles and the California Highway Patrol, which includes demonstrating a
knowledge of first aid as well as competency to operate a school bus; and

WHEREAS, the county superintendent has a staff of 61 professional school bus
drivers who collectively drive more than two million miles each year transporting
students with special needs; and

WHEREAS, these special students are transported throughout Kern County
often in challenging terrain, road and weather conditions; and

WHEREAS, many children we transport are medically fragile and drivers have
at times had to administer emergency aid until medical personnel arrived; and

WHEREAS, despite these considerable challenges, many of the bus drivers we
employ have transported children for hundreds of thousands of miles without a
preventable accident, including one former driver who logged more than one million
dccident-free miles; and

WHEREAS, many of our transportation staff participate in annual “School Bus
Rodeos” which test their skills in making difficult turns, parallel parking a 40-foot bus
and other challenging maneuvers; and

WHEREAS, a considerable number of our drivers have developed relationships
with families of these special children and even provide food baskets to those in need
during the holiday season each year; now therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the Kern County Board of Education takes extreme pleasure in

commending these dedicated drivers on “School Bus Driver Day” and know that the
safe transport of our children always is their highest priority.

BY ORDER OF THE KERN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Dated: March 11, 2025

John G. Mendiburu, Ed.D.
Ex Officio Secretary
Kern County Superintendent of Schools



